
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3673 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Environment and Licensing 

Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Tuesday 4 August 2020 

Time: 4.15 pm 

Place: Virtual Meeting 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Lorna Mellors 

Democratic Services Officer 

0115 901 3673 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

 

 

Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Marje Paling 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Nicki Brooks 

 
Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Boyd Elliott 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 
Councillor Julie Najuk 
Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor John Truscott 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.  
 

2   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 14 
July 2020 

5 - 6 

 

3   Declaration of Interests.  
 

4   Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards 
 

7 - 12 

 Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing  
 

5   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent.  
 

6   Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
 

 

 To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 

 

7   Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence - SH 
 

13 - 15 

 Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing.  
 

8   Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence - TA 
 

17 - 20 

 Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing.  
 

9   Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence 
 

21 - 22 

 Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing.  
 

10   Change of Circumstance of Joint hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence 
 

23 - 24 

 Report of the Director of Health and Community Wellbeing.  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES 
ENVIRONMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday 14 July 2020 

 
Councillor Marje Paling (Chair) 

 
Present: Councillor Nicki Brooks 

Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Boyd Elliott 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 

Councillor Julie Najuk 
Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor John Truscott 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 

Officers in Attendance: C Allcock, H Lee and R Pentlow 

 
1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.  

 
None. 
 

2    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 3 MARCH 2020  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

3    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.  
 
None. 
 

4    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.  
 
None. 
 

5    EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, the Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the ensuing reports on the grounds that the report involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

6    APPLICATION FOR A ONE YEAR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
HIRE DRIVERS LICENCE  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Health and 
Community Wellbeing, which had been circulated prior to the meeting, 
regarding an application for a one year joint Hackney Carriage/Private 
Hire Drivers Licence for JK. 
 
JK attended the meeting and addressed the Committee. 
 
In making its decision, the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To grant JK a one year joint Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 2.45 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 6



 
 

Report to Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Subject: Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards 

Date: 4 August 2020 

Author: Director of Community Health and Wellbeing 

 

Purpose 

To inform Members of the introduction by the Department for Transport of the 
Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards and to request a working group 
be set up comprising Members of the Environment and Licensing Committee and 
officers to consider the impact of the new standards on the Council’s taxi 
licensing processes and policies. 

 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT Committee: 

1) Note the introduction of the Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle 
Standards. 

2) Agree that a working group be set up comprising members of the 
Committee and officers to consider the impact of the new standards 
on the Council’s taxi licensing process and policies. 

3) Agree that any proposed changes to Council polices, including any 
proposals for consultation on those changes be reported back to the 
Committee for any necessary determinations. 

 

1 Background 

1.1 In July 2020, the Department for Transport published new taxi and private 
hire vehicle standards (“the Standards”). The Standards can be found at 
Appendix 1 to this report. The Standards have been introduced to ensure 
that taxi and private hire licensing authorities use their licensing powers to 
protect children and vulnerable adults. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



1.2 A public consultation was carried out between 12 February and 22 April 
2019 inviting respondents including passengers, drivers, safety and 
disability representation groups, taxi intermediaries and licensing 
authorities, to submit their views on the measures proposed in the draft 
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards produced by the 
Department of Transport. In response to the consultation, amendments 
were made to the draft standards and the final document has now been 
published along with an impact assessment.   

1.3 The Secretary of State for Transport has written to all Council Leaders to 
confirm that these standards have now been issued.  In the letter he has 
stated Licensing Authorities are under a legal duty, under section 177 of 
the Police and Crime Act 2017, to have regard to the Statutory Standards 
and that all licensing authorities should publish their consideration of the 
measures contained in the Standards and the policies and delivery plans 
that stem from these. 

1.4 

 

 

1.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Secretary of State for Transport has asked licensing authorities to 
provide an update to the Department of Transport of their consideration of 
the Standards six months after their publication, so by the end of January 
2021. 

 
The Standards, issued under the Police and Crime Act 2017 have been 
produced following concern over the links between the trade and child 
sexual abuse and exploitation that have been established in many areas. 
The Standards will however be beneficial to all passengers. The 
Standards are clear that licensing authorities are expected to implement 
the recommendations in the Standards unless there is a compelling local 
reason not to. The Standards essentially call for a complete review of 
licensing regimes by licensing authorities and make a number of 
recommendations and proposals as to areas that should be considered 
including: policy, decision making, licence conditions, CCTV in vehicles, 
enhanced DBS checks as well as advice on safeguarding processes and 
information. 

1.6 The following are some of the recommendations made to licensing 
authorities in the Standards : 

 Reviewing licensing policies at least every 5 years but with interim 
reviews. 

 Ensuring appropriate whistle blowing policies and procedures are in 
place for staff to raise concern about licensing process and 
application of policy. 

 Ensure consultation is carried out in relation to changes in licensing 

Page 8



rules and policies with both the trade and customers. 

 Any changes to licence requirements should be followed by a 
review of licences already issued. 

 Licensing authorities should maintain close links with the police to 
ensure effective and efficient information sharing procedures and 
protocols are in place and being used. 

 A decision to refuse or revoke a licence as the individual is thought 
to present a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult should be 
referred to the DBS. 

 Licence holders should be required to disclose any previous 
licences held and any application which has been refused or any 
licence revoked or suspended. 

 Licensing authorities should have a robust system in place for 
recording complaints, including analysing trends across licencees 
as well as individual complaints. 

 Individuals making determinations in respect of licences should 
undertake sufficient training. 

 Ensure arrangements for urgent decisions to be taken in relation to 
immediate revocation. 

 Consideration of the Department’s recommendations in relation to 
the assessment of previous convictions. 

 Authorities should refuse to issue licences to individuals appearing 
on the children and adult barred list and appropriate enhanced DBS 
checks should be carried out. 

 Authorities should provide safeguarding advice and assistance to 
the trade and ensure awareness of reporting processes where a 
child or vulnerable person is at risk of harm. 

 Authorities should ensure any tests of a driver’s proficiency cover 
both oral and written English language skills. 

 Criminality checks should be required for vehicle proprietors. 

 Consultation should be undertaken on the mandatory installation of 
CCTV in taxis. 

 Authorities should ensure operators of private hire vehicles keep 
registers of all staff including bookers. 

Page 9



1.7 The Standards also provide detail about enforcement and assessments of 
previous convictions and their impact on the fit and proper test. 

1.8 Whilst a number of recommendations set out in the Standards are already 
in place at the Council, the Standards need detailed consideration by 
officers and Members to ensure that the Council’s policies and practices 
have proper regard to the Standards. This will be a significant piece of 
work and will require input from officers and Members. 

  

2 Proposal 

2.1 That Members note the introduction of the Statutory Taxi & Private Hire 
Vehicle Standards. 

2.2 That Members agree that a working group be set up comprising of 
 members of the Committee and officers to consider the impact of the 
 new standards on the Council’s taxi licensing process and policies and to 
progress recommendations and practices detailed in the Standards where 
these are not already incorporated into the Council’s taxi and private hire 
licensing regime. 

2.3 That any proposed changes to Council policies and procedures, and any 
necessary consultations are required to be reported back to the Committee 
for consideration. 

  

3 Alternative Options 

3.1 The Council could choose not to review their policies and procedures in 
the light of the Standards, however, the Standards are clear that licensing 
authorities are expected to implement the recommendations in the 
Standards unless there is a compelling local reason not to. 

3.2 The review of the Council’s licensing regime could be carried out without 
establishing a working group, however, Member and officer involvement is 
considered essential to ensure robust scrutiny of the current regime 
against the Standards. 

  

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 There are no additional resource implications or budgetary implications in 
relation to this review. Any new measures resulting from a review of the 
licensing regime may have budgetary implications but these will be 
considered at a later stage. 

  

Page 10



 

5 

 

Legal Implications 

5.1 The Standards are clear that licensing authorities are expected to 
implement the recommendations in the Standards unless there is a 
compelling local reason not to.  The Standards also make it clear that it is 
a statutory requirement to have regard to them. 

5.2 Following a review of the licensing regime it is likely that there will be 
changes to policy and practice which will require consultation with the 
trade and the public and appropriate approvals will need to be sought from 
Committee. 

  

6 Equalities Implications 

6.1 As part of the review Equalities Impact Assessments will be necessary, in 
addition any consultation required will need to be conducted in a way that 
complies with the Equality Act 2010.  The Standards themselves have a 
particular impact on individuals within the protected characteristics of age, 
disability and race, this will need further consideration as part of the 
review. 

  

7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications 

7.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

  

8 Appendices 

8.1         
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploa
ds/attachment_data/file/902238/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-
standards-english-21-7-2020.pdf   

Department for Transport – Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Standards 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/902238/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-21-7-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/902238/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-21-7-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/902238/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards-english-21-7-2020.pdf


 

Statutory Officer approval 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2020
	4 Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards
	7 Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence - SH
	8 Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence - TA
	9 Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence
	10 Change of Circumstance of Joint hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence

